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Dear Christine Omotoso, 

 

Your request, dated 12 August 2012, is reproduced below, along with our responses.  I have 
dealt with your request in three sections.  The first relates to your questions on mandatory use 
of Universal Jobmatch, the second relates to your questions on contracts, tender notices and 
public consultation in relation to Universal Jobmatch and the third to data protection issues.   
 
(1) 

Mandatory use of Universal Jobmatch  

 
In relation to mandatory use of Universal Jobmatch, you asked: 
 
“One of the advantages of the new service for benefit claimants is not having to provide 
evidence of their jobsearch activity on Universal Jobmatch as their personal adviser will be 
able to view this online.” 
      
 http://www.rightsnet.org.uk/pdfs/IDS_jobmatch_letter1%281%29.doc 
      
Universal Jobmatch Q&A says >>> 
      
 Q13. Will claims to benefit be affected by the service? 
 No, this is a job posting and matching service, which is open to everyone, not just benefit 
claimants and is not connected to any claims. 
      
 http://www.dwp.gov.uk/docs/universal-jobmatch-faqs.pdf 
      
The above comment suggests that use of Universal Jobmatch is optional for anyone in receipt 
of or claiming out of work benefits that include an obligation to provide evidence of     
Jobseeking/Jobsearch as part of the claim, such as Jobseekers Allowance or future Universal 
Credit, is this true? 
      
Universal Jobmatch letter says >>>> 
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evidence of their jobsearch activity on Universal Jobmatch as their personal adviser will be 
able to view this online.” 
      
 http://www.rightsnet.org.uk/pdfs/IDS_jobmatch_letter1%281%29.doc 
      
If someone on Jobseekers Allowance or getting future Universal Credit is required as part of 
their benefit to provide evidence of Jobseeking/Jobsearch can they choose not to use 
Universal Jobmatch and not have these benefits sanctioned? 
      
Mandatory registration on Universal Jobmatch for everyone in receipt of Jobseekers 
Allowance? 
      
Are there plans, expectation or requirements that everyone claiming Jobseekers Allowance will 
have to register for Universal Jobmatch and this registration will allow an "adviser" to view 
evidence of Jobsearch activity on Universal Jobmatch? 
      
Will any “adviser” or anyone else acting on behalf of the DWP have the Power to make 
registration on Universal Jobmatch a mandatory requirement?   
   
Mandatory registration on Universal Jobmatch for everyone who will be in receipt of Universal 
Credit? 
      
Will everyone on Universal Credit that has a mandatory Work search requirement also have a 
mandatory requirement to register with ad use Universal Jobmatch and will this mandatory 
requirement allow an "adviser" to view evidence of Jobsearch activity on Universal jobmatch?  
 
Employers making use of Jobmatch Mandatory >>>>> 
      
 Can employers make it a requirement that they will only accept a Job application via Universal 
Jobmatch? If this is true, it actually means registration will become, by default, a mandatory 
requirement by the way it is designed, is this true?  
      
The Department is not required to disclose information in connection with this part of your 
request because we believe that sections 35 and, where relevant, 42 of the Freedom of 
Information Act apply.   
 
Section 35 (formulation of government policy etc) 
 
The policy in relation to Universal Jobmatch is still being developed and until finalised, the 
Department considers that the balance of public interest weighs in favour of non-disclosure.  
This is because the Act acknowledges that good government depends on good decision 
making and therefore needs space in which to formulate policies based on the best advice 
available with full consideration of all the options. Ministers also need to be able to conduct 
rigorous and candid risk assessments of their policies and programmes including 
considerations of the pros and cons without there being premature disclosure which might 
close off other, better options.   
 
Section 42 (legal professional privilege) 
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There are no identifiable reasons why the strong presumption in favour non-disclosure of 
legally privileged information should be overridden in relation to Universal Jobmatch.    
Please see further information below about why the Department considers that the balance of 
public interest in each case comes down in favour of not complying with your request.   
 
(2) Contracts tender notices and public consultation documents  
 
In relation to contracts and tender notices you asked:   
 
Can you please send me a copy of the contracts awarded for this Universal Match and a copy 
of the original tender notice and documents? 
 
DWP’s response: 
 
One single contract was awarded for the Universal Jobmatch service and all the contract 
documents are in the public domain on Contract Finder. Please click on the attached link to 
view the notice. You will need to register on Contract Finder first in order to access any 
information: 
https://online.contractsfinder.businesslink.gov.uk:443/Common/View%20Notice.aspx?site=100
0 =en&NoticeId=610334 
 
Similarly to the contract documentation, tender notices are also in the public domain and can 
be accessed via 'Tenders Electronically Daily' (TED) the public procurement database of the 
European Union. You can access the database on http://ted.europa.eu/ 
 
However, for your ease, I have enclosed the four published notices: 

                           

In relation to public consultation you asked:  
   
Has any Public consultation taken place for Universal Jobmatch?  
 
DWP’s response: 
No formal public consultation has taken place but in designing the new service we drew on 
research such as this report: 
http://statistics.dwp.gov.uk/asd/asd5/rports2009-2010/rrep679.pdf page 43/100) 
 
Universal Jobmatch is an important element of the Department of Work and Pensions 
digitalisation and service transformation agenda, aimed at providing easy online access to 
appropriate Government services. 
 
 
(3) Data Protection and access to Universal Jobmatch  
 
In relation to access to Universal Jobmatch by DWP’s adviser’s you asked: 
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the user, who is this "adviser",? Which government department do they belong to?  
 
If a user starts a new benefit claim will the "adviser" have access to past user activity records? 
 
DWP’s response:  
 
DWP (Department for Work and Pensions) Personal Advisers will have access to activity 
records of Universal Jobmatch users if the user ticks the relevant box in their Universal 
Jobmatch account to give permission to view their account.  If a jobseeker, who was not 
claiming benefit, ticks the box to give permission to view their account, the adviser would have 
access the jobseeker's full history on Universal Jobmatch. 
 
If someone is not claiming any benefit who has access to the users activity records? 
If the customer is not claiming a relevant benefit, the adviser does not need to access the 
account and so will not do so.  
 
In relation to data retention you asked: 
 
How long are the records stored for? 
 
DWP’s response:  
 
18 months after the account is closed 
 
In relation to compatibility with the Data Protection Act and the Human Rights Act, you asked:  
 
Do you have any info on how Universal Jobmatch will be compatible with the Data Protection 
Act and the Human Rights Act? If you do please supply.   
 
DWP’s response  
 
The Department will need to be satisfied that Universal Jobmatch policy is compliant with 
relevant legal requirements before including it as part of the services available to DWP’s 
customers.  The Department is not required to disclose information in connection with 
compliance with legal requirements because we believe that sections 35 and, where relevant, 
42 of the Freedom of Information Act apply.   
 
Section 35 (formulation of government policy etc) 
 
The policy in relation to Universal Jobmatch is still being developed and until finalised, the 
Department considers that the balance of public interest weighs in favour of non-disclosure.  
This is because the Act acknowledges that good government depends on good decision 
making and therefore needs space in which to formulate policies based on the best advice 
available with full consideration of all the options. Ministers also need to be able to conduct 
rigorous and candid risk assessments of their policies and programmes including 
considerations of the pros and cons without there being premature disclosure which might 
close off other, better options.   
 



[bookmark: 5]Section 42 (legal professional privilege) 
 
There are no identifiable reasons why the strong presumption in favour non-disclosure of 
legally privileged information should be overridden in relation to Universal Jobmatch.    
Please see further information below about why the Department considers that the balance of 
public interest in each case comes down in favour of not complying with your request.   
 
In relation to anti-fraud and security you asked: 
 
Anti fraud and security >>>>> 
      
For the purposes of anti-fraud and national security can you supply a list of agencies that will 
have access to the personal data of Universal Jobmatch users? Will access include all law 
enforceement agencies, local authorities, security services (MI5 for example), HMRC for 
example. What are/will be the laws that apply to access to such personal data for the purposes 
of anti-fraud and national security? 
 
DWP’s response:   
 
DWP will only share personal information as we do now.  Our data-sharing policy is published 
on the internet (http://www.dwp.gov.uk/privacy-policy/). 
 
In addition to powers to share information under the common law, legislation allows and in 
some cases requires DWP/Monster (DWP’s service provider in relation to Universal Jobmatch) 
to disclose data to other bodies.  Both must comply with all legal requirements in relation to 
any such disclosures.   
 
Legislation can be found on www.legislation.gov.uk.  You can obtain copies of specific 
legislation by writing to:   
 
The Stationery Office Limited 
PO Box 29 
Norwich 
NR3 1GN 
 
 
In relation to contractors and providers running employment support services on behalf of 
DWP, you asked: 
 
Employment Support Services >>>> 
      
Will companies (Contractors/Providers) running any Employment Support Services on behalf 
of the DWP have the same level of access to Universal Jobmatch user personal data as does 
the "adviser"? 
 
DWP’s response: 

 

As outlined above, the law, allows DWP in certain circumstances to disclose data to other 
bodies.  DWP will comply with all legal requirements in this area, including the Data Protection 
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Services on behalf of DWP will not be given access to Universal Jobmatch. 

If you have any queries about this letter please contact me quoting the reference number 
above.   

Yours sincerely,  
 
 
DWP Central FoI Team 
 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

Your right to complain under the Freedom of Information Act 

 

If you are not happy with this response you may request an internal review by e-mailing freedom-of-information-

xxxxxxx@xxx.xxx.xxx.xx or by writing to DWP, Central FoI Team, Caxton House, Tothill Street, SW1H 9NA. Any 

review request should be submitted within two months of the date of this letter.  

 

If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review you may apply directly to the Information 

Commissioner’s Office for a decision. Generally the Commissioner cannot make a decision unless you have 

exhausted our own complaints procedure. The Information Commissioner can be contacted at: The Information 

Commissioner’s Office, Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow Cheshire SK9 5AF www.ico.gov.uk 

 




    

  

  
